

Rain and Glory

Visions, Dreams, Still Small Voice, Testimonies, Quotes, Stories, Articles, Word Studies

Compiled by Sandy Warner

Published by: SOS Publications®

PO Box 7096 • Eugene, Oregon 97401

All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording or by any information storage and retrieval system without written permission from the publisher.

Copyright © 1999 by SOS Publications. Printed in the United States of America. First printing 1999.

Scripture quotations marked (TLB) are taken from The Living Bible © 1971. Used by permission of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc., Wheaton, IL 60189. All rights reserved

Scripture taken from the NEW AMERICAN STANDARD BIBLE(R), © Copyright The Lockman Foundation 1960, 1962, 1963, 1968, 1971, 1972, 1973, 1975, 1977. Used by permission.

Scriptures marked (KJ) are taken from The King James Version. Public domain.

Scripture quotations marked "NKJV" are taken from the New King James Version. Copyright © 1979, 1980, 1982 by Thomas Nelson, Inc. Used by permission. All rights reserved.

Scriptures marked "AMP" are taken from the Amplified® New Testament, © Copyright The Lockman Foundation 1954, 1958, 1987. Used by permission.

Greek & Hebrew definitions were taken from Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible, © 1890 by James Strong, Madison NJ. Public domain.

If any acknowledgment of copyrighted material used in this book has been inadvertently omitted or miscredited in the footnotes, receipt of such information would be appreciated.

To contact author: swauthor@usa.net

WEBSITE: www.thequickenedword.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Rain and Glory

~ Visions, Dreams, His Still Small Voice, Experiences, Quickened Words, Articles, Word Studies ~

www.thequickenedword.com

Part One – The Rain Of His Spirit	
[1] Ankle Deep Waters	8
[2] Raining Silver Coins	9
[3] Announcement Of An Open Heaven And Rain	9
[4] Raining His Spirit	.10
[5] It's Going To Rain, Rain, Rain!	.11
[6] Thunder And Rain	.11
[7] Victorious Rain	.11
[8] The Second Glory Of God	.13
[9] Copious Rains	.14
[10] Sound Of Many Waters	.14
[11] The Sound Of Falling Rain	.15
[12] The Sound Of The Falling Rain	.16

[13] For I Rain Now	16
[14] A Torrent Coming	16
[15] Send The Rain Sweet Jesus	16
[16] Rain Bubbles Blowing East	17
[17] A Downpour Coming	18
[18] Fountains Of Rain	19
[19] Downpour	19
[20] Rain Announcement	19
[21] Buckets Of Rain	20
[22] Listen For The Rain	20
[23] Awe-Filled Rain	22
[24] Sound Of Falling Rain In The Distance	22
[25] Shocking Rain	22
[26] Joel 2 Rain	23
[27] Rain And The Fear Of The Lord	23
[28] Raining Rainbows	24
[29] Laughter Or Pain Depends Where You Are	24
[30] Rain & Wind	25
[31] Rain Puts Out The Fires	25

[32] Rain Confirmation	25
[33] Rain On Our Brains	26
[34] Soak In The Gentle Rain & Trust	26
[35] Rain Scriptures	27
[36] Yes Pain, But Listen To It Rain	30
[37] The Desert Shall Bloom	32
[38] The Dawning Of A New Day	33
[39] Awesome Vision From Tommy Hicks	34
[40] Liquid Light Vision	46
[41] The Wind & The Rain Vision	47
[42] The Mighty Wind Vision	48
[43] Purifying Cleansing Rain	49
[44] Knee To Thigh Deep Waters	50
Part 2: Anointing Upon Our Children	52
1) Vision - He Blows Upon The Children	52
2) Quote Bob Jones' Shepherd's Rod 1999	53
3) Quotes From Bobby Conner's Shepherd's	Roc 54

Surrounding Our Children	
5) Testimony Of A Child's Anointing	58
6) Testimony Of A Child's Faith	59
7) Dream: The Children Swim In The River Of God	64
8) Dream - The Children Play In God's Aquedu From Heaven To Earth	
9) God Gives Good Gifts To His Children	66
10) Stories Of God Speaking Through Children	70
11) Parable - His Word Through A Son's Creativity	73
12) Testimonies Of Sending The Youth To The M To Minister	
13) Downpour Of His Holy Spirit Upon The Youth	78
14) Youth Passion	84
15) Children Joining Us In Praying For One Anoth	
16) Quickened Visitation	87
17) The Lord Rejoices Over The Youth	88
18) The Kingdom Of God Is All About Hav Children	•
19) Release The Sons And Release Yourself	90

20) Raining Marbles, Will You Play?.....95

[1] ANKLE DEEP WATERS

Vision given to Pastor Dale Howell September 1997

In the vision I was looking at crystal clear water. My viewpoint was parallel to the waterline so that I could see both above and below the water. It was as if I was looking through a glass because I could see clearly underwater. The water was crystal clear. I could see the legs and feet of someone standing in the water. The water level was exactly ankle deep.

POSSIBLE INTERPRETATION

From Pastor Dale: The present move of the Lord is still only ankle deep. We have much to look forward to.

"And when the man that had the line in his hand went forth eastward, he measured a thousand cubits, and he brought me through the waters; the waters were to the ankles. Again he measured a thousand, and brought me through the waters; the waters were to the knees. Again he measured a thousand, and brought me through; the waters were to the loins. Afterward he measured a thousand; and it was a river that I could not pass over: for the waters were risen, waters to swim in, a river that could not be passed over..." (Eze 47:3-5)

Pastor Dale Howell: Cornerstone Church, Grants Pass, Oregon. Church: (541) 479-7799 Fax: (541) 479-6875 E-Mail: cschurch@chatlink.com Website:http://http://www.cornerstonegp.com/

[2] RAINING SILVER COINS

Vision given to Rose Crownover on 10/15/97

E-mail: soundofharvest@juno.com Website: http://members.spree.com/soundharvest

As Pastor taught this night, I was greatly impacted by "Jesus our Redeemer." (Part of his teaching was on the silver in the tabernacle.) As the Holy Spirit fell in the room I began to weep and I saw a vision of a large red and silver banner unfolding over us. It said in large letters REDEEMER. As it unfolded, silver rain began to fall from it. The rain turned to silver coins that began to fill up the sanctuary. When I asked the Lord what this meant, He reminded me that our church was a "redemption center" and that He had made provision for the redemption of many here.

[3] ANNOUNCEMENT OF AN OPEN HEAVEN AND RAIN

Vision given to Sandy Warner 1985

The Lord opened my eyes and the ceiling opened up so I could see the heavens. Several trumpets pierced the clouds through the open ceiling. Then Lord opened my ears I literally heard the trumpets play the most beautiful fanfare I have ever heard. It was in perfect harmony. When they finished, the heavens poured a huge torrential downpour of rain. Everything was totally soaked inside the building.

[4] RAINING HIS SPIRIT

Dream given to Grandma Anna on 9/8/86

DREAM: I drove up to a dark yard, straight to the sprinklers and turned them on. I awoke singing, "It's beginning to rain, says the voice of the Father, I'm going to pour My Spirit out on My sons and My daughters."

CONFIRMATIONAL SIGN

I had just finished transferring the above dream into my journal. When I opened the door to the garage, my garage was flooded with water! Then I turned in my Bible to 2 Kings 3:16! Thus saith the Lord, make this valley full of ditches, For thus saith the Lord, Ye shall not see wind, neither shall ye see rain, yet that valley shall be filled with water, that ye may drink, both ye and your cattle and your beasts.

[5] IT'S GOING TO RAIN, RAIN, RAIN!

Heard & Saw given to Grandma Anna 4/25/87

I heard the Lord say, "A sheet of rain." Then I saw the sheet of rain. It looked like a rectangular solid sheet of water.

[6] THUNDER AND RAIN

His Still Voice given to Grandma Anna on 3/20/89

I heard the Lord say, "Much gain in the heavenlies because of the persistence. Strong faith brought reverberations. Thunder. Rain. Downpour."

[7] VICTORIOUS RAIN

His Still Small Voice given to Grandma Anna on 11/1/91

I heard the Lord say, "Taken and won. The battle is over. The victory is Mine says the Lord. Watching and waiting at your post. Careful watch. Thank you.

We won. Now comes the rain. It's a mighty downpour. Wet and thirsty, that's My crop.

The weeds grow too. Watch it. Let them grow. I'll take care of it.

Nothing ventured. Nothing gained. In this case all. What a family to call My own. Sons, daughters, all. Worth the trouble, worth the pain. Those teenagers, what a gain! Listen. Listen to the rain.

A wonderful blessing. We sing for joy. The parents to the children, it's a boy. A big boy. More like a man. Yes, I can. I can do anything.

Want to have a party? We will at the gate. It's coming. I'm never late. Bride is on time, so is the Groom. Ruling and reigning, that's what we'll do.

There never is a finish. There never is a through. Gone is winter. Spring too. Let's watch summer. Begin anew. That's a rare spectacle watching it grow.

Quick gain. Worth the pain. One big whoosh and he's out.

Glory. The glory begins anew. There is meat anew under the hill. For it takes a battle to win a city. The work made ready under the hill. What My Spirit is doing under the hill, soon you will know.

Lovely, a bride singing My song. Lovely tune. Songs of deliverance. Saving the nations. Quiet and reserved, a bride dazzling white. Changed all at once from the inside. Motives pure. Loves Me with her whole heart."

[8] THE SECOND GLORY OF GOD

Dream given to Sandy Warner on 4/15/87

DREAM: There was a group called the Second Book of Acts on stage. They were singing about the rain. I could hear thunder and see lightening. It started to rain hard. I saw a girl totally drenched. When I awoke I heard the Lord say, "This is that spoken by the prophet Joel. The second glory of God is here."

Haggai 2:9: The glory of this latter house shall be greater than of the former, saith the LORD of hosts:

and in this place will I give peace, saith the LORD of hosts.

[9] COPIOUS RAINS

Parable given to Grandma Anna 8/23/88

The city truck arrived and flushed out the fire hydrant which deluged the street with water. Then immediately a thunder storm hit and we were flooded with a sheet of rain. The drops were two inches across. With joy I turned to the Word and it opened to "Copious rains will insure plentiful harvests!"

[10] SOUND OF MANY WATERS

His Still Small Voice given to Grandma Anna 1/16/89

I heard the Lord say, "Married. Soon. Worth waiting for. My own. A bride. Seven complete. Lovely. Glorified. Dazzling. A rushing stream, straight from the throne room. Healing the nations. Trees of righteousness. Stately tall cedars. A branch of My planting. Will you not know it? A beacon on a hill. Yes, this is the city I desire to dwell in, the mountain of Zion.

Listen. The sound of many waters. Coming. Rain. The desert shall bloom. It shall be saith the Lord your God, walking among you, unrecognized. I am a God that hidest Myself. Fear not little one of the words you have heard. Soon off comes the cover. Exposed. A city on a hill cannot be hid. A wondrous work. Astonishment."

(I was awakened many times during the night hearing, "Door opened. Walk it.")

[11] THE SOUND OF FALLING RAIN

Heard & Saw given to Shirley 5/19/92

HEARD: "Rain water to my soul. Pain brings gain. I've got a river of life flowing out of me. Let the words of my mouth and the meditations of my heart be acceptable in they sight. I can hear the sound of the falling rain."

SAW: An umbrella turned inside out by the wind. Then as the rain started it was ok.

HEARD: "Hide not thy face from me. He restoreth my soul."

[12] THE SOUND OF THE FALLING RAIN

His Still Small Voice given to Sandy Warner 2/8/94

HEARD: "Listen to the sound of the falling rain."

[13] FOR I RAIN NOW

Heard given to Grandma Anna 1/3/92

HEARD: "For I rain now."

[14] A TORRENT COMING

Heard given to Grandma Anna 11/8/92

I heard the Lord say, "Coming. Can it be? Watch and see. A rain. A torrent. Caught in the current. Strong strokes. Swimming well. You'll be with Him little one. Fear not."

[15] SEND THE RAIN SWEET JESUS

Poem Heard by Shirley 3/20/94

"The time has come to rise and shine;

No matter what the day may bring.

Some are filled with sunshine,

Others filled with rain.

The earth would soon

Be parched and dry,

If all we had was sun;

So send the rain,

Sweet Jesus.

I'll try to do my part,

To sing and dance,

And let the sun shine forth

That's stored within my heart."

[16] RAIN BUBBLES BLOWING EAST

Given to Grandma Anna on 5/8/94

I heard the Lord say, "Raining hard. Cloud burst. Lots of bubbles. Blowing everywhere. It's ok, carried by the wind. East they blow. Precious in My sight.

Lots of rain coming. A wet summer. I've a song in my heart today. Double portion ears are hear to stay. Double portion ears aren't going away. Hooray!"

[17] A DOWNPOUR COMING

His Still Small Voice given to Grandma Anna on 5/24/94

"A very special family. Lots of pain. Lots of strain. But watch it rain. A downpour coming. Drenched. Over and over and over again. Upside down, right side up. Cartwheels. Turning and turning. What joy. This family did it. Raising My Boy. They are the womb. It's an earthly tomb. Lots of little Adam's growing. Going to make a sonic boom.

Watch out it's catching. Such a noise you've never heard. It's coming from the East. A huge bird. Called him to My foot. That's what it took. People loving people. Willing to go all the way. Ready to greet the New Day. My Day. Lots of fire and thunder. Cleansing as it goes. The earth in painful throes. Groaning and yearning. When will it happen? Let it be. You'll know. When you see him in the midst of the sea. Thank you dear ones. You did it for Me."

[18] FOUNTAINS OF RAIN

Heard by Grandma Anna 7/28/94

"Is this you? Is this me? All others wait and see. You know. What's Coming? Phew!. Mouth open. I will fill it. Fountain spewing. It's a geyser. Touches the throne room. Rains downward. It's beginning to rain cries the voice of the Father. I've waited long and hard for it says Father Farmer. My best crop with a message."

[19] DOWNPOUR

Heard by Grandma Anna 9/30/94

HEARD: "It rained. Downpour."

[20] RAIN ANNOUNCEMENT

Vision given to Grandma Anna 11/4/94

I saw a huge drum and then I heard, "It's going to rain!"

[21] BUCKETS OF RAIN

Heard by Sandy Warner 1/19/95

HEARD: "Rain. Buckets full. Rejoice. Granted."

[22] LISTEN FOR THE RAIN

Taken from the book Words to Ponder by Sandy Warner

A NEW DAY

Shout it from the house tops. Make merry and be glad! A new beginning do I declare. For your shame you shall receive double of everlasting joy upon your heads. Rejoice for I come to refresh.

Listen for the rain. Long I have waited to pour Myself out upon you. First the fire, then the rain. I held back until the fire did its cleansing work. As Elisha declared make this valley full of ditches in preparation for the coming water, so I declared righteousness and mercy must be sown through the breaking of fallow ground.

Rejoice oh meek ones! The preparation is complete. Your hearts are soft and I turn My face toward you.

I earnestly seek you. My heart is drawn toward you and I will draw your heart toward Me. This is not a work you can do in yourself. I alone do the drawing. Only be tender and soft to respond when I call. I shall woo your heart and place My longings within you. I will create in you a hunger for My Words. I have a hunger to hear you.

A new season is knocking on your door. Resurrection! Awake oh sleeping ones. Open your ears and hear, open your eyes and see, open your heart and receive the resurrection of My Spirit within you. Awake, arise. Stand to your feet! Rejoice for it is the dawning of a new day.

Mercy, mercy. Declare mercy to My people. The burning of the fire, the sifting of the plough, the dryness of famine, all shall be quenched as I pour Myself upon you. Your ground shall be settled and planted with the rains. I will confirm your way with the nearness of My Presence. Rejoice My fair ones, for the drawing has begun.

Behold I will do a new thing; now it shall spring forth...[Isa 42:19]

[23] AWE-FILLED RAIN

Dream given to Sandy Warner 8/22/95

DREAM: Suddenly there was a downpour of rain. I have never heard or seen rain so strong, so loud, so violent. It was almost a fearful thing, certainly at least awe-filled. I wondered if the roof would hold.

[24] SOUND OF FALLING RAIN IN THE DISTANCE

Vision given to Shirley 11/5/95

VISION: This was like a silhouette. In the distance there was a wall and there were people fighting on it with swords. I was standing watching this.

HEARD: "Maintain. Fortified. Your strength is in Me. A distant call. A mighty wind. The sound of falling rain."

[The Lord opened my ears and I could actually hear the rain.]

[25] SHOCKING RAIN

Heard by Sandy Warner 12/10/95

HEARD: "Shock rain. Let her know she's coming around the corner. I just want you to be sure. Impact. She must be a conduit."

[26] **JOEL 2 RAIN**

Still Small Voice given to Sandy Warner 11/3/95

HEARD: "Joel 2 rain. That's God's confirmation.

You're on this ark. That's where we are. Home."

VISION: [I saw written] "We're in this together."

HEARD: "Door opened. It's the 11th hour."

[27] RAIN AND THE FEAR OF THE LORD

Dream given to Grandma Anna 3/18/96

DREAM: We were driving some visitors somewhere. It began to rain so hard we couldn't hear our voices. I said, "Lord it's raining so hard we can't hear!" Then it

quit raining so hard. The visitors had never seen rain before and were frightened.

[28] RAINING RAINBOWS

Heard from the Lord by Sandy Warner 5/3/96

While gardening I heard the Lord say, "I have a poem for you." That afternoon my son came home from school with a Japanese Haiku poem he had written:

"Soft rain falls from sky.

Tiny prisms reflect light.

Rainbow in distance."

[29] LAUGHTER OR PAIN DEPENDS WHERE YOU ARE

Poem Heard by Grandma Anna 6/17/96

"Look. Watch. Wait.

Look who's coming through the gate.

It's a time of laughter or a time of pain.

Depends upon being under the rain."

[30] RAIN & WIND

Dream given to Shirley 10/6/96

DREAM: It was raining very hard and the wind was blowing very hard. I could actually hear the rain and the wind.

[31] RAIN PUTS OUT THE FIRES

Heard & Saw by Grandma Anna 7/22/96

HEARD AND SAW: I heard, "An afternoon fire caught in the showers." Then I saw the rain pouring down and was suddenly drenched all across the front of me.

[32] RAIN CONFIRMATION

Experience given to Grandma Anna on 10/22/96

EXPERIENCE: It looked as though it might rain while I was taking my walk. I was thinking about the last day

ministry of the Elijah company of people and trying to internalize it. At the one mile point I made the decision to walk another mile and a half. I asked the Lord if He would please not let it rain until I got home like he did for Elijah. It didn't rain the whole way although it looked as though it was raining all around me. As soon as I returned home, I got my purse and went to my car. Just as I sat down and closed the door, it began to pour! It really rained very hard! I sat there laughing and thanking the Lord for the confirmation.

[33] RAIN ON OUR BRAINS

Given to Bob Jones on 10/11/97

"I was awakened at 2:22 A.M. to hear the Spirit say, "I am going to rain on the brain of My people."

[34] SOAK IN THE GENTLE RAIN & TRUST

Poem given to Grandma Anna on 3/22/98

"It's a song in the night.

Singing forth My glory bright.

So why do you mourn

And act forlorn?

Trust. Trust is being reborn.

Soaking in My gentle rain.

It's bringing forth great gain.

The desire of all nations is the train.

It's here, mysteries becoming plain.

Climb aboard My sons

And we will head down the track."

[35] RAIN SCRIPTURES

KJV Jam 5:7 Be patient therefore, brethren, unto the coming of the Lord. Behold, the husbandman waiteth for the precious fruit of the earth, and hath long patience for it, until he receive the early and latter rain.

KJV Hos 10:12 Sow to yourselves in righteousness, reap in mercy; break up your fallow ground: for [it is] time to seek the Lord, till he come and rain <03384> righteousness upon you.

HEBREW RAIN:

RAIN: 03384 yarah {yaw-raw'}or (2 Chr. 26:15) yara' {yaw-raw'} a primitive root; TWOT - 910; v AV - teach 42, shoot 18, archers 5, cast 5, teacher 4, rain 2, laid 1, direct 1, inform 1, instructed 1, shewed 1, shooters 1, through 1, watered 1; 84 1) to throw, shoot, cast, pour 1a) (Qal) 1a1) to throw, cast 1a2) to cast, lay, set 1a3) to shoot arrows 1a4) to throw water, rain 1b) (Niphal) to be shot 1c) (Hiphil) 1c1) to throw, cast 1c2) to shoot 1c3) to point out, show 1c4) to direct, teach, instruct 1c5) to throw water, rain

RIGHTEOUSNESS: 06664 tsedeq {tseh'-dek} from 06663; TWOT - 1879a; n m AV - righteousness 77, just 11, justice 10, righteous 8, righteously 3, right 3, righteous cause 1, unrighteousness 1, misc 2; 116 1) justice, rightness, righteousness 1a) what is right or just or normal, rightness, justness (of weights and measures) 1b) righteousness (in government) 1b1) of judges, rulers, kings 1b2) of law 1b3) of Davidic king, Messiah 1b4) of Jerusalem as seat of just government 1b5) of God's attribute 1c) righteousness, justice (in case or cause) 1d) rightness (in speech) 1e) righteousness (as ethically right) 1f) righteousness (as vindicated). iustification (in controversy), deliverance, victory, prosperity 1f1) of God as covenant-keeping in redemption 1f2) in name of Messianic king 1f3) of people enjoying salvation 1f4) of Cyrus

(Hermeneutika - Bible Works for Windows)

KJV Proverbs 16:15 In the light of the king's countenance is life; and his favour is as a cloud of the latter rain.

KJV Hosea 6:3 Then shall we know, if we follow on to know the LORD: his going forth is prepared as the morning; and he shall come unto us as the rain, as the latter and former rain unto the earth.

KJV Joel 2:23 Be glad then, ye children of Zion, and rejoice in the LORD your God: for he hath given you the former rain moderately, and he will cause to come down for you the rain, the former rain, and the latter rain in the first month.

KJV Zechariah 10:1 Ask ye of the LORD rain in the time of the latter rain; so the LORD shall make bright clouds, and give them showers of rain, to every one grass in the field.

KJV James 5:7 Be patient therefore, brethren, unto the coming of the Lord. Behold, the husbandman waiteth for the precious fruit of the earth, and hath long patience for it, until he receive the early and latter rain.

[36] YES PAIN, BUT LISTEN TO IT RAIN

His Still Small Voice & Visions given to Grandma Anna on 10/2/89

HEARD: "Heed the cry of the trumpet. A long blast. A loud one. Unpleasant sound. Heed it. For then comes what all heaven has been waiting for. The beginning of Satan taken to the pit. Do you hear it? Listen."

VISION: Then I saw the word, "LISTEN"

HEARD: "A dissonant sound. But a clarion call. Blow the whistle kid. It's time. Pain. Father. Pain. Yes, but listen to it rain."

VISION: I saw rain.

HEARD: "Fear not for the Kingdom of God suffers violence and the violent take it by force. Heed the call of the trumpet. The Lord desires willing vessels. He will not force you to respond to your call. But He desires you to wake up. To make a decision. Will you

or? All heaven awaits your answer. Come on candle stand up. It's time. Do you hear it? It's a loud blast."

VISION: I saw the words, "WAKE UP"

HEARD: "It's time for the restitution of all things. It's time for the latter and former rain together in the first month. How the husbandman waits for the early and latter rain. It's time. Wake up you dry bones and hear the words of the Lord. My army is coming and it's waiting for its Generals."

VISION: I again saw the words, "WAKE UP"

HEARD: "Heed the call of reveille. It's time to march. Awake, Awake O sword of the Lord. Awake, Awake. It's time to put on your beautiful garments. Take up the rod of Moses and stand before Pharaoh. Demand he let my people go. Yea, ye shall deliver the captives. Home free. Will you say, "Yes, Lord?" He waits for your answer. All creation waits and groans. Listen to the clarion call of the trumpet. It's calling you. Rise up my fair one and come away. Who is this that cometh out of the wilderness like pillars of smoke with all powders of the merchant? Yes, they sing the song of Moses for he has fought a good fight."

[37] THE DESERT SHALL BLOOM

His Still Small Voice given to Sandy Warner Rhema 11/14/85

[Taken from the book, "101+ Ways God Speaks (And How To Hear Him)

When I went to sleep I had a strong yearning for Jesus. As I slept He came to me and opened my eyes. I saw a huge, gigantic banner unfolding across the sky. It said, "THE LORD JESUS CHRIST." Suddenly I found myself in heaven looking down upon a vast desert. It was dry, brown, flat, and immense.

As I gazed upon the lifeless desert, someone was standing above and behind me declaring the scroll of Isaiah 35: "The wilderness and the solitary place shall be glad for them; and the desert shall rejoice, and blossom as the rose. It shall blossom abundantly, and rejoice even with joy and singing: the glory of Lebanon shall be given unto it, the excellency of Carmel and Sharon, they shall see the glory of the Lord, the excellency of our God. Strengthen ye the weak hands, and confirm the feeble knees. Say to them of a fearful heart, be strong, fear not: behold your God will come with vengeance; He will come and save you. Then the eyes of the blind shall be opened, and the ears of the deaf shall be unstopped. Then

shall the lame leap as an hart, and the tongue of the dumb sing: for in the wilderness shall waters break out, and streams in the desert. And the parched ground shall become a pool, and the thirsty land springs of water..." (Isaiah 35 KJ)

[38] THE DAWNING OF A NEW DAY

From Word to Ponder II by Sandy Warner

Behold, see the horizon! Bursts of amber appear before you, filled with the glory of God. Did I not say a new beginning? Did I not promise the glory of the latter house will be greater than the former? Look, for the glory of the Lord comes.

Arise from your slumber My people! The rooster crows and the earth stirs. Wipe the sleep from your eyes. For the skies are already filled with angelic activity. They stir the winds and usher the rain of My Presence. Rise early and you shall benefit from the first bursts of My glorious Presence. The amber rods will penetrate your soul and give strength for a new day.

Listen to the stirrings. Whispers soon to be shouts. A new day arising! A new day birthing. The earth shall

be filled with My glory and all mankind will behold the desire of all nations.

"And I will shake all nations, and the desire of all nations shall come: and I will fill this house with glory, saith the LORD of hosts. The silver is mine, and the gold is mine, saith the LORD of hosts. The glory of this latter house shall be greater than of the former, saith the LORD of hosts: and in this place will I give peace, saith the LORD of hosts." (Haggai 2:7-9)

[39] AWESOME VISION FROM TOMMY HICKS

TOMMY HICKS VISION 1961 (NOTED EVANGELIST)

My message begins July 25, about 2:30 in the morning at Winnipeg, Canada. I had hardly fallen asleep when the vision and the revelation that God gave me came before me. The vision came three times, exactly in detail, the morning of July 25, 1961. I was so stirred and so moved by the revelation that this has changed my complete outlook upon the body of Christ, and upon the end-time ministries.

The greatest thing that the church of Jesus Christ has ever been given lies straight ahead. It is so hard to help men and women to realize and understand the thing that God is trying to give his people in the end times.

I received a letter several weeks ago from one of our native evangelists down in Africa, down in Nairobi. This man and his wife were on their way to Tanganyika. They could neither read nor could they write, but we had been supporting them for over two years. As they entered into the territory of Tanganyika, they came across a small village. The entire village was evacuating because of a plague that had hit the village. He came across natives that were weeping, and he asked them what was wrong.

They told him of their mother and father who had suddenly died, and they had been dead for three days. They had to leave. They were afraid to go in; they were leaving them in the cottage. He turned and asked them where they were. They pointed to the hut and he asked them to go with him, but they refused. They were afraid to go.

The native and his wife went to this little cottage and entered in where the man and woman had been dead for three days. He simply stretched forth his hand in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, and spoke the man's name and the woman's name and said, "In the

name of the Lord Jesus Christ, I command life to come back to your bodies." Instantaneously these two heathen people who had never known Jesus Christ as their Savior sat up and immediately began to praise God. The spirit and the power of God came into the life of those people.

To us that may seem strange and a phenomenon, but that is the beginning of these end-time ministries. God is going to take the do-nothings, the nobodies, the unheard-of, the no-accounts. He is going to take every man and every woman and he is going to give to them this outpouring of the Spirit of God.

In the book of Acts we read that "In the last days," God said, "I will pour out my Spirit upon all flesh." I wonder if we realized what he meant when God said, "I will pour out my Spirit upon all flesh." I do not think I fully realized nor could I understand the fullness of it, and then I read from the book of Joel: "Be glad then, ye children of Zion, and rejoice in the Lord your God: for he hath given you the former rain moderately, and he will cause to come down for you the rain, the former rain, and the latter rain -" (Joel 2:23). It is not only going to be the rain, the former rain and the latter rain, but he is going to give to his people in these last days a double portion of the power of God!

As the vision appeared to me after I was asleep, I suddenly found myself in a great high distance.

Where I was, I do not know,. But I was looking down upon the earth. Suddenly the whole earth came into my view. Every nation, every kindred, every tongue came before my sight from the east and the west, the north and the south. I recognized every country and many cities that I had been in, and I was almost in fear and trembling as I beheld the great sight before me: and at that moment when the world came into view, it began to lightning and thunder.

As the lightning flashed over the face of the earth, my eyes went downward and I was facing the north. Suddenly I beheld what looked like a great giant, and as I stared and looked at it, I was almost bewildered by the sight. It was so gigantic and so great. His feet seemed to reach to the north pole and his head to the south. Its arms were stretched from sea to sea. I could not even begin to understand whether this be a mountain or this be a giant, but as I watched, I suddenly beheld a great giant. I could see his head was struggling for life. He wanted to live, but his body was covered with debris from head to foot, and at times this great giant would move his body and act as though it would even raise up at times. And when it did, thousands of little creatures seemed to run away. Hideous creatures would run away from this giant, and when he would become calm, they would come back

All of a sudden this great giant lifted his hand toward the heaven, and then it lifted its other hand, and when it did, these creatures by the thousands seemed to flee away from this giant and go into the darkness of the night.

Slowly this great giant began to rise and as he did, his head and hands went into the clouds. As he rose to his feet he seemed to have cleansed himself from the debris and filth that was upon him, and he began to raise his hand into the heavens as though praising the Lord, and as he raised his hands, they went even unto the clouds.

Suddenly every cloud became silver, the most beautiful silver I have ever known. As I watched this phenomenon it was so great I could not even begin to understand what it all meant. I was so stirred as I watched it, and I cried unto the Lord and I said, "Oh, Lord, what is the meaning of this," and I felt as if I was actually in the Spirit and I could feel the presence of the Lord even as I was asleep.

And from those clouds suddenly there came great drops of liquid light raining down upon this mighty giant, and slowly, slowly, this giant began to melt, began to sink itself in the very earth itself, and as he melted, his whole form seemed to have melted upon the face of the earth, and this great rain began to come down. Liquid drops of light began to flood the very earth itself and as I watched this giant that seemed to melt, suddenly it became millions of

people over the face of the earth. As I beheld the sight before me, people stood up all over the world! They were lifting their hands and they were praising the Lord.

At that very moment there came a great thunder that seemed to roar from the heavens. I turned my eyes toward the heavens and suddenly I saw a figure in white, in glistening white - the most glorious thing that I have ever seen in my entire life. I did not see the face, but somehow I knew it was the Lord Jesus Christ, and He stretched forth His hand, and as He did, He would stretch it forth to one and to another, and another. And as He stretched forth His hand upon the nations and the people of the world men and women - as He pointed toward them, this liquid light seemed to flow from His hands into them, and a mighty anointing of God came upon them, and those people began to go forth in the name of the Lord.

I do not know how long I watched it. It seemed it went into days and weeks and months. And I beheld this Christ as He continued to stretch forth His hand; but there was a tragedy. There were many people as He stretched forth His hand that refused the anointing of God and the call of God. I saw men and women that I knew. People that I felt would certainly receive the call of God. But as He stretched forth His hand toward this one and toward that one, they simply bowed their head and began to back away. And each of those that seemed to bow down and back away, seemed to go

into darkness. Blackness seemed to swallow them everywhere.

I was bewildered as I watched it, but these people that He had anointed, hundreds of thousands of people all over the world, in Africa, England, Russia, China, America, all over the world, the anointing of God was upon these people as they went forward in the name of the Lord. I saw these men and women as they went forth. They were ditch diggers, they were washerwomen, they were rich men, they were poor men. I saw people who were bound with paralysis and sickness and blindness and deafness. As the Lord stretched forth to give them this anointing, they became well, they became healed, and they went forth.

And this is the miracle of it - this is the glorious miracle of it - those people would stretch forth their hands exactly as the Lord did, and it seemed as if there was this same liquid fire in their hands. As they stretched forth their hands they said, "According to my word, be thou made whole."

As these people continued in this mighty end-time ministry, I did not fully realize what it was, and I looked to the Lord and said, "What is the meaning of this?" And He said, "This is that which I will do in the last days. I will restore all that the cankerworm, the palmerworm, the caterpillar - I will restore all that they

have destroyed. These, my people, in the end times will go forth. As a mighty army shall they sweep over the face of the earth."

As I was at this great height, I could behold the whole world. I watched these people as they were going to and fro over the face of the earth. Suddenly there was a man in Africa and in a moment he was transported by the Spirit of God, and perhaps he was in Russia, or China or America or some other place, and vice versa. All over the world these people went, and they came through fire, and through pestilence, and through famine. Neither fire nor persecution, nothing seemed to stop them.

Angry mobs came to them with swords and with guns. And like Jesus, they passed through the multitudes and they could not find them, but they went forth in the name of the Lord, and everywhere they stretched forth their hands, the sick were healed, the blind eyes were opened. There was not a long prayer, and after I had reviewed the vision many time in my mind, and I thought about it many times, I realized that I never saw a church, and I never saw or heard a denomination, but these people were going in the name of the Lord of Hosts. Hallelujah!

As they marched forth in everything they did as the ministry of Christ in the end times, these people were ministering to the multitudes over the face of the earth. Tens of thousands, even millions seemed to come to the Lord Jesus Christ as these people stood forth and gave the message of the kingdom, of the coming kingdom, in this last hour. It was so glorious, but it seemed as though there were those that rebelled, and they would become angry and they tried to attack those workers that were giving the message.

God is going to give to the world a demonstration in this last hour as the world has never known. These men and women are of all walks of life, degrees will mean nothing. I saw these workers as they were going over the face of the earth. When one would stumble and fall another would come and pick him up. There were no "big I" and "little you," but every mountain was brought low and every valley was exalted, and they seemed to have one thing in common - there was a divine love, a divine love that seemed to flow forth from these people as they worked together, and as they lived together. It was the most glorious sight that I have ever known. Jesus Christ was the theme of their life. They continued and it seemed the days went by as I stood and beheld this sight. I could only cry, and sometimes I laughed. It was so wonderful as these people went throughout the face of the whole earth, bringing forth in this last end time.

As I watched from the very heaven itself, there were times when great deluges of this liquid light seemed to fall upon great congregations, and that congregation would lift their hands and seemingly praise God for hours and even days as the Spirit of

God came upon them. God said, "I will pour my Spirit upon all flesh," and that is exactly this thing. And to every man and every woman that received this power, and the anointing of God, the miracles of God, there was no ending to it.

We have talked about miracles. We have talked about signs and wonders, but I could not help but weep as I read again this morning, at 4 o'clock this morning the letter from our native workers. This is only the evidence of the beginning for one man, a "do-nothing, and unheard -of." who would go and stretch forth His hand and say, "In the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, I command life to flow into your body." I dropped to my knees and began to pray again, and I said, "Lord, I know that this thing is coming to pass, and I believe it's coming soon!"

And then again, as these people were going about the face of the earth, a great persecution seemed to come from every angle.

Suddenly there was another great clap of thunder, that seemed to resound around the world, and I heard again the voice, the voice that seemed to speak, "Now this is my people. This is my beloved bride," and when the voice spoke, I looked upon the earth and I could see the lakes and the mountains. The graves were opened and people from all over the world, the saints of all ages seemed to be rising. And as they

rose from the grave, suddenly all these people came from every direction. From the east and the west, from the north and the south, and they seemed to be forming again this gigantic body. As the dead in Christ seemed to be rising first, I could hardly comprehend it. It was so marvelous. It was so far beyond anything I could ever dream or think of.

But as this body suddenly began to form, and take shape again, it took shape again in the form of this mighty giant, but this time it was different. It was arrayed in the most beautiful gorgeous white. It's garments were without spot or wrinkle as its body began to form, and the people of all ages seemed to be gathered into this body, and slowly, slowly, as it began to form up into the very heavens, suddenly from the heavens above, the Lord Jesus came, and became the head, and I heard another clap of thunder that said, "This is my beloved bride for whom I have waited. She will come forth even tried by fire. This is she that I have loved from the beginning of time."

As I watched, my eyes suddenly turned to the far north, and I saw seemingly destruction: men and women in anguish and crying out, and buildings in destruction.

Then I heard again, the fourth voice that said, "Now is My wrath being poured out upon the face of the earth." From the ends of the whole world, the wrath of God seemed to be poured out and it seemed that there were great vials of God's wrath being poured

out upon the face of the earth. I can remember it as though it happened a moment ago. I shook and trembled as I beheld the awful sight of seeing the cities, and whole nations going down into destruction.

I could hear the weeping and wailing. I could hear people crying. They seemed to cry as they went into caves, but the caves in the mountains opened up.

They leaped into water, but the water would not drown them. There was nothing that could destroy them. They were wanting to take their lives, but they could not.

Then again I turned my eyes to this glorious sight, this body arrayed in beautiful white, shining garments. Slowly, slowly, it began to lift from the earth, and as it did, I awoke. What a sight I had beheld! I had seen the end-time ministries - the last hour. Again on July 27 at 2:30 in the morning, the same revelation, the same vision came again exactly as it did before.

My life has been changed as I realized that we are living in that end time, for all over the world God is anointing men and women with this ministry. It will not be doctrine. It will not be a churchianity. It is going to be Jesus Christ. They will give forth the word of the Lord, and are going to say, I heard it so many times in the vision and according to my word it shall be done.

Oh, my people. listen to me. According to my word, it shall be done. We are going to be clothed with power and anointing from God. We won't have to preach sermons, we won't have to have persons heckle us in public. We won't have to depend on man, nor will we be denomination echoes, but we will have the power of the living God. We will fear no man, but will go in the name of the Lord of Hosts.

[40] LIQUID LIGHT VISION

From Pastor Dale Howell: Cornerstone Church, Grants Pass, Oregon. Church: (541) 479-7799 Fax: (541) 479-6875 E-Mail: cschurch@chatlink.com Website:http://www.jesus-connect.net/world/Prophecy/cschurch

As I was reading the above Tommy Hicks vision I was shocked to see the part about the liquid light. Why was I shocked? Just tonight, I saw while praying in the prayer room, rain coming down that looked like droplets of light. Then I saw it come down in sheets of light. Then the many different sheets were brought together until they formed a great Niagara Falls of liquid light coming down. The liquid light seemed to be some how liquid love. I then saw the Niagara position itself directly over Cornerstone Church. The church was dwarfed by the size of the Niagara.

[41] THE WIND & THE RAIN VISION

Vision given to Julie Meeks

Posted January 99

I saw this picture of God and He surrounded the earth and His face was in front of the earth. Then I heard these words...."I the Lord have taken a big breath and we are in the time between the inhale and the exhale. I am going to blow upon the earth a mighty wind those that are firmly rooted will stand, those that are not will be like a tumble weed blown about." I saw a picture of this dry tumble weed rolling over the land in the wind. Then I heard...." I will purge My church in this way. "

Next I saw this picture of an intense rain, a deluge. I heard...." Then will come a mighty rain, a flood this time not to destroy mankind but to redeem it. There will be an outpouring of My Spirit on the earth. I will call all men to me."

As I was hearing and seeing all this, I got this intense feeling of God pleading with the church to come out of its complacency. To repent and dig those roots down deep which only comes through intimacy with God. He loves us so much and he wants us to withstand

the mighty wind but it is our choice to press in or be a dried out tumble weed.

God Bless, Julie Meeks

[42] THE MIGHTY WIND VISION

Experience & Vision given to Sandy Warner 1985

I had a most awesome experience where in a vision I felt the Lord literally fill my lungs with His breath. In the vision I took a deep breath and could feel His mighty wind rushing past my nostrils and down my throat. He opened my ears and I heard its very loud sound as it rushed into my lungs. As my lungs filled, it took several minutes to fill them to capacity. I could feel the Lord's Presence as this occurred and thought what a mighty pair of lungs He has! When I finished inhaling, I held it a brief moment. He opened my eyes and I gazed at multitudes of little blue and pink baby carriages. Each baby carriage carried a baby wrapped very snugly in a blue or pink blanket with a matching blue or pink milk bottle. My heart was filled with such tender feelings and a great nurturing for these babies. I started to exhale upon them, gently at first. Like feathers in the wind, these babies arose and were carried upon the breath of God. Still exhaling, I watched them with float ever so gently upon the breath of God. The breath grew stronger and they flurried around like snow flurries in the wind.

This vision seemingly lasted a very long time as His exhale continued to blow.

When I came out of the vision I understood these were the children of the great harvest yet to come. When these people are "reborn" of His Spirit, He will raise them up, feed & nurture them, cover them with the protection and warmth of His Presence, and carry them above the surrounding circumstances by pouring out His Spirit. He has such great love for us!!

[43] PURIFYING CLEANSING RAIN

VISION: A few weeks back, I had a full colour, full motion, open vision of rain. The rain was coming down so hard that the water had no chance to drain away, and the force of it was such that it appeared to be "boiling" as the drops hit the standing water. There was such a wonderful sense of cleansing and refreshing, like the rain had been falling for quite a while, and where it had no place to run away to, it was pouring like rivers down the streets. There were great gouts of water coming up from the drains as they had been flooded, and the water was clean and pure, with none of the expected mud and debris that you would expect.

What I sensed God saying is that He is going to pour down such a measure of His cleansing anointing and refreshing presence that it will overflow every obstacle, will cleanse and purify every place, including the deep, hidden ones in the church where harmful deposits have built up unnoticed and ignored, then it will flow into the streets, to the broken, the prodigals and the unsaved, and it will be clean, no longer tainted by man's religion and unholiness.

Blessings! Paul (Bristol UK)

[44] KNEE TO THIGH DEEP WATERS

Experience given to Sandy Warner - 1/14/99

Since being on the ministry team at a Paul Cain conference in Jan 98, there have been several times that I have experienced the Lord's anointing in an unusual way. When I am walking, my legs feel like they are literally walking through water. I used to do water aerobics, and I know the muscles and feeling of what it is like to walk through water. Several times, including another Paul Cain conference on 11/5/98 and then again at a Reed Grafke (Paul's assistant for many years) conference in Grants Pass, Oregon, I have experienced this exact thing. It is as though my legs are plunging through water in order to move forward. My leg muscles really labor and I can hardly walk, but I manage to eventually get where I want to go! This is an actual literal experience.

Because this has happened several times, and this last time it was even harder to walk in this "current", I began to question the Lord what this occurrence was as I had not heard of anyone experiencing this. The Lord suddenly quickened Ezekiel's vision to my heart and I understood that I was literally experiencing the river of God. When I thought back in hindsight, I realized this was exactly the case as each time I had experienced it, it was more and more difficult to walk through this "water" and seemed as though the water was deeper each time. My last experience on 1/14/99 there were moments it increased to thigh deep waters. I believe the Lord is using this as a sign to tell us where we are at in the going forth of His Spirit, according to Ezekiel's vision.

NKJ Ezekiel 47:1 Then he brought me back to the door of the temple; and there was water, flowing from under the threshold of the temple toward the east, for the front of the temple faced east; the water was flowing from under the right side of the temple, south of the altar. 2 He brought me out by way of the north gate, and led me around on the outside to the outer gateway that faces east; and there was water, running out on the right side. 3 And when the man went out to the east with the line in his hand, he measured 4 Again he measured one thousand and brought me through the waters; the water came up to my knees. Again he measured one thousand and brought me through; the water came up to my waist. 5 Again he measured one thousand, and it was a river that I

could not cross; for the water was too deep, water in which one must swim, a river that could not be crossed. 6 He said to me, "Son of man, have you seen this?" Then he brought me and returned me to the bank of the river. 7 When I returned, there, along the bank of the river, were very many trees on one side and the other. 8 Then he said to me: "This water flows toward the eastern region, goes down into the valley, and enters the sea. When it reaches the sea, its waters are healed. 9 "And it shall be that every living thing that moves, wherever the rivers go, will live. There will be a very great multitude of fish, because these waters go there; for they will be healed, and everything will live wherever the river goes.

PART 2: HIS ANOINTING UPON OUR CHILDREN

1) VISION - HE BLOWS UPON THE CHILDREN

Experience & Vision given to Sandy Warner 1985

I had a most awesome experience when in a vision I felt the Lord literally fill my lungs with His breath. In the vision I took a deep breath and could feel His mighty wind rushing past my nostrils and down my throat. He opened my ears and I heard its very loud sound as it rushed into my lungs. As my lungs filled, it took several minutes to fill them to capacity. I could feel the Lord's Presence as this occurred and thought what a mighty pair of lungs He has! When I finished inhaling, I held it a brief moment. He opened my eyes and I gazed at multitudes of little blue and pink baby carriages. Each baby carriage carried a baby wrapped very snugly in a blue or pink blanket with a matching blue or pink milk bottle. My heart was filled with such tender feelings and a great nurturing for these babies. I started to exhale upon them, gently at first. Like feathers in the wind, these babies arose and were carried upon the breath of God. Still exhaling, I watched them float ever so gently upon the breath of God. The breath grew stronger and they flurried around like snow flurries in the wind. This vision seemingly lasted a very long time as His exhale continued to blow.

2) QUOTE FROM BOB JONES' SHEPHERD'S ROD 1999

"From the good seed I saw children that were the best of all generations. They are the children of promise from Romans 9:8 & Galatians 4:28. Children as young as 6 years old were anointed with awesome power

and revelation. Their revelation came directly from the Lord and their prayers went before Him with unwavering faith. Many of these children will be filled with the Holy Spirit even while in their mother's womb. Their prayers even carried more power and authority than their parents."

3) QUOTES FROM BOBBY CONNER'S SHEPHERD'S ROD 1999

Children Will Hear on a New Higher Level

"This coming anointing will enable them to release shocking wisdom and revelation. We must seek to become childlike in order to be able to see and enter the Kingdom of God. Matthew 21:16: "And said unto him, Hearest thou what these say? And Jesus saith unto them, Yea; have ye never read, Out of the mouth of babes and sucklings thou hast perfected praise?"

Family Life is Precious to the Lord

"Home life will be very precious. Fathers and mothers will get to know their children. Many will turn off their television and sit with their families telling their visions. This will be much more exciting than anything Hollywood could bring forth. This will be directed by the Holy Spirit – a "Holy-would." Many will see

upcoming attractions in visions and dreams and trances."

4) VISION - A PROMISE OF THE LORD'S GLORY SURROUNDING OUR CHILDREN

From Sandy Warner 5/3/96

While I was working in the yard, I heard the Lord whisper, "I have a poem for you." A couple hours later my son came home from school and gave me a Japanese Haiku, which is a 5-7-5 syllable Japanese poem:

Soft rain falls from sky.

Tiny prisms reflect light.

Rainbow in distance.

I wondered at the greater meaning and why the Lord would directly tell me this was His poem. Now in hindsight, I believe "Rainbow in distance" was the Lord's announcement of my son's upcoming vision and the Lord's Promise that He would rain His Presence upon the children.

Like most parents, I had been praying that the Lord would speak to my son personally, and begin to train him as His son. Then Sonshine awakened one morning saying he had the most awesome dream. As he shared it with me, I knew he had seen more than a dream — it was a vision, as he described seeing it in very vivid colors and it appeared three dimensional.

HIS VISION: He was in the school yard looking up at a multitude of rainbows in beautiful, vivid colors which filled the sky. There were so many that together they formed a huge dome. He stood in the midst of one giant 3-D rainbow that was very vivid. It formed a complete circle which was also moving in circles around him.

[end of vision]

I was so delighted because I knew it was a promise of the Lord's Presence and the Lord's promised training (school yard) over his life. "As the appearance of the rainbow in the clouds on a rainy day, so was the appearance of the surrounding radiance. Such was the appearance of the likeness of the glory of the LORD. And when I saw it, I fell on my face and heard a voice speaking.

(Ezekiel 1:28 NAS)

"I set My rainbow in the cloud, and it shall be for the sign of the covenant between Me and the earth. (Genesis 9:13 NKJ)

I believe this is a promise to all those parents who have worried over their children and are continually holding them up before the Lord. My son did not see one rainbow, there were so many they filled the sky. There were so many they formed a huge dome, like a covering. I believe the Lord was saying, "I give you My promise and covenant, that I will cover and protect your children. They belong to Me, and rest assured I will raise them up and school them in everything they need in order to be rooted and grounded in Me!"

"All your children shall be taught by the LORD, And great shall be the peace of your children." (Isaiah 54:13 NKJ)

Confirmation to vision

Later as I was driving, I was thinking about the vision. I knew he had seen a vision, but my son wasn't sure if that was what a vision was supposed to be like! So I asked the Lord for a confirmation that he had seen a vision. As soon as I asked, I stopped at the stop light behind a city bus. There looming above me was a giant advertisement plastered on the back of the bus: "Rainbow Optics!" Rainbow Optics is a local business

selling eye glasses, and its exact translation means, rainbow vision!

5) TESTIMONY OF A CHILD'S ANOINTING

Posted on Elijah List 1/28/99

Subj: A LITTLE CHILD SHALL LEAD THEM - A fiveyear old prophesies to the church

Steve,

Jordan Danks (age 5) sang this over Shelly Danks (his mom) Associate Pastor of Joels Place Christian Fellowship!

A FIVE YEAR OLD PROPHESIES

"Answers,---- answers. We are trying to catch good answers in our nets, but we keep catching flies. There are good answers in the air. We have to put the flies in a jar and not feed them so they will die. Then Satan will not make anymore flies because he will know what we will do to them. Then we will catch good answers from God. We have to go out when the flies are not out. If we're too late... then we're too late. We have to fight in the fields with our bows, guns, swords, shields and cannons then the wall will come down! We cannot go around the wall! We have to wait for it

to come down. We can sleep in the grass by the wall, but when we hear the sound of the cannon we will get up and fight no matter how tired we are! One man or woman will keep shooting with his/her cannon while the others are asleep and the wall will come down even though he/she is tired! When we pray we are still fighting! God's army always wins! God's army always wins! Anyone who needs or wants to be in God's arms can have His comfort. If they fall from His arms, God will pick them up again."

Pastor Dean Hollingsworth

Matt 21:15-16

But when the chief priests and the teachers of the law saw the wonderful things he did and the children shouting in the temple area, "Hosanna to the Son of David," they were indignant. "Do you hear what these children are saying?" they asked him. "Yes," replied Jesus, "have you never read, "'From the lips of children and infants you have ordained praise'?"

6) TESTIMONY OF A CHILD'S FAITH

Posted 12/29/98 from Kathie Walters

(A story of prophetic living)

LISA, A DOG, AND BOB JONES

There are many religious thoughts that are embedded in the back of our minds. Isn't it great that God's Spirit is setting about to remove them. While they are there we cannot see God as He really is. There are people in the Body of Christ who do not know that God can use a child to bring the Word of the Lord to a leader, a church or even a nation. Many signs, wonders, miracles and healings take place through the "laying on of sticky fingers" as my husband call it, in our miracle services. But for now I want to tell this little story to illustrate the fact that God cares about "little" things and He can use "little" things. ("God has chosen the foolish things to confound the wise" (1 Co 1:27), so that qualifies you and me!).

A few years ago when we lived in Charlottesville, Va. My youngest daughter, Lisa who was ten years old at the time, suddenly announced that she wanted a dog. I said, "No' of course like most sensible parents. The next day she came to me and said, "I do believe the Lord has a dog for me, it is a few months old and it is 3/4 German Shepherd, and 1/4 Husky, "Well Lisa, I am not buying a dog, and it would very hard to find a dog like that". End of conversation. The next day while we driving in town Lisa asked if we could "just look" at the animals at the animal shelter, "My dog is there" she said.. "No", I said as we drove OUT of town.

The following day we had occasion to go into town again. Of course during the outing Lisa asked again, "Can we at least go and LOOK at the animals?" We had finished shopping and I do actually quite like animals so I said, "OK" Knowing well that the chances of seeing a puppy 3/4 Shepherd and 1/4 husky was about 500,000 to 1. We got to the shelter and looked at all the kitty cats and birds, and weasels and ferrets etc. Then we got to the big dog shed. Loads of dogs, big ones, little ones, fat ones, thin ones, mean ones, friendly ones, but NO 3/4 Shepherd and 1/4 husky ones. I was a bit smug about it I admit. Then Lisa asked if there was another shed, and the woman in charge said, "Why, yes right on through that door". This other place was full of bigger dogs and I tried to hurry on through. "Mom a, my dog is here, he is over there, she said pointing to the end cage. From where I was, I could hardly see the color let alone the "make", anyway there was no way to know what a 3/4 Shepherd, 1/4 husky looked like. I walked to the cage with Lisa and the lady followed us. "What kind of dog is this?" I asked her, "It's a 1/4 Husky and 3/4 Shepherd" she said.

"When did it come in?", I asked. "Oh about an hour ago, a young man bought it in because he had to move into an apartment and wasn't allowed an animal. He was quite upset and said he had prayed that God would bring someone for his dog".

I was quite irritated with the unknown guy who prayed, the dog with the begging eyes, the woman with the information that I didn't want to hear, and Lisa for being right again, and also the Lord for letting all this happen! Clutching at one last straw, I asked the woman how old the dog was, as he looked kind of large to me, not a puppy like Lisa had said. "He's six months old" - "Is that a puppy?" I asked still hoping for an "out". "Well it's not an adult dog is it?" she said. So we took the doggie home.. Lisa and the dog looking very pleased, sitting in the back of the car while I chauffeured them.

When we reached home Bob Jones called me to give me a new phone number.

Desperately I said, "Lisa's got a dog." I thought that maybe he would have a "word" that would outweigh the other "word" that Lisa had. "Oh yes" he said, "that's a very good dog:" "Is it?' I replied, (a statement, not as a question). "It has a very good nature, and its' very intelligent". "Oh good!" I got off the phone quick. Well I thought I had better "receive" the dog. So I told Lisa what Bob Jones had said.

"Mom, I had a vision of Bob and the Lord gave me word for him today". "What was it?" I asked her. "I had a vision that he dropped the ball and the Lord says, "Stop feeling sorry for yourself".

I called Bob back the next day and related the vision and the word. Bob received it and when he talked to me a few weeks later he said that he had spent two days repenting.

Now the point of this story is 1) That God knows all about the details of your life. 2)He sure does manifest Himself through children. 3) That I have observed that there are leaders who wouldn't "lower" themselves to receive a word from a child, or someone they may consider on a lesser spiritual plane than themselves. Leaders and strong ministers I know who really do have a strong relationship with God are always open to receive from whoever the Lord sends. Sometimes Gods' mailman in your life has muddy boots! But that doesn't mean that you can't receive the mail!!

Be blessed,

Kathie Walters

kathie@hom.net

Organization: Good News Fellowship Ministries

http://www.goodnews.netministries.org

7) DREAM: THE CHILDREN SWIM IN THE RIVER OF GOD

Sandy Warner Rhema 4/21/98

DREAM: I saw 2 very large ski slopes that were running parallel to each other. One was deep in snow and the other was glazed over in ice. Suddenly I realized that where I had been standing was not a ski slope after all but a river and it was just now beginning to melt and break its ice free. Just as I realized this, I was swept into its flow. I scooped some children to go with me and we went swimming down the river. As we turned a bend, I looked up and saw the 2nd "slope" and knew it had yet to thaw and it was a second even more powerful river. The second one went into the first one and they joined together.

Sandy Comments: In past rhema, snow, cold or ice has meant a cold environment frozen over by enemy restraints. Two means double portion. Therefore, I see this dream representing an area in the river of God that is melting old restraints and beginning to flow. The waiting double portion is not yet "thawed." My scooping the children says they are swimming in the river of God too.

8) DREAM - THE CHILDREN PLAY IN GOD'S AQUEDUCTS FROM HEAVEN TO EARTH

Sandy Warner Rhema 9/14/98

DREAM: I was in the rafters of a house and it was filled with all kinds of PCP pipes, from tiny to very large like a culvert or aqueduct in the rafters. They looked like the modern day water slides at water them parks. These were built for the children and many were playing on them. I saw my son slide down a huge one like a water slide.

Sandy Comment: The fact this was in the rafters, the highest place in the house, and the pipes went from the top to the bottom of this large home, I think this represents God's house, from heaven to earth. The pipes are the various flows of His Holy Spirit, from small to large, and they were built especially for the children. The fact that I saw the children sliding down and not climbing up, represents the fact they do not have to climb an uphill battle in order to enjoy the anointing of the Lord. They have a position of grace won for them from the efforts of mothers and fathers of the prior generation.

9) GOD GIVES GOOD GIFTS TO HIS CHILDREN

Taken from the book, 101+ Ways God Speaks (And How to Hear Him)

By Sandy Warner

I have a pastor friend who had a most interesting experience with God speaking through numbers. It all started the year before when he prayed, "Lord, please come and pour out Your Spirit upon us. Do anything You want, I just want to know that it is You and not some deception of the enemy." About the same time he noticed every time he looked at a digital clock the time would consistently be 11:11 (AM and PM). This continued for several weeks.

Then one morning when he was rushing to get ready for an appointment he looked at the clock - 11:11. He said, "Lord?" Immediately he had a sense it was a scripture, but determined not to look, lest he select the one that suited him. At the end of the day as he rolled into bed he glanced at the clock to see what time it was. You guessed it — 11:11. The next morning, again 11:11. "Lord, which scripture?" Finally He heard the Lord say, "Luke!" This was the verse: "If

a son asks for bread from any father among you, will he give him a stone? Or if he asks for a fish, will he give him a serpent instead of a fish?" (Luke 11:11) At last he understood.

The Lord was answering his prayer by saying He had given him a written guarantee that if he asked God for something he would not get a counterfeit. That night as he went to bed he again glanced at the clock - 11:11 pm. The next day he shared this with his leaders and after the meeting an elder's wife walked into her bedroom and glanced at their clock. It was 11:11.

That Saturday he prepared a message that would end with the 11:11 message and when he went to bed that night he looked at the clock — again it said 11:11. Smiling, he went to sleep. Sunday he preached the message and glanced one time at the back wall of the church. It was 11:13 which was significant to him because the Lord had said He wanted to pour out His Holy Spirit that morning. Luke 11:13 says, "If you then, being evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will your heavenly Father give the Holy Spirit to those who ask Him!" That night when he went to bed the clock said 11:13! From this, he was absolutely convinced they had received the move of the Lord which was the outpouring of His Holy Spirit!

The story doesn't end there. After I had heard about the 11:11 message, we had a fun confirmation to the above story. Sonshine said, "Hey look!!! Our clock says 11:11!!!" I started laughing, and said, "I gotta write this down!" Sonshine, knowing nothing about 11:11 asked me, "Why? Is that another parable?" (I am always noticing allegorical parables, and he knows that.) I said, "Yes." He wasn't satisfied with that answer and was curious. So I told him the long story about 11:11's. When I finished he couldn't run fast enough to look up Luke 11:11.

Shortly after that, he and I started noticing 7:11's. It became so frequent we were both wondering what it meant, just like Pastor. We saw 7:11 in our bedrooms, on the TV, on the microwave, on his wrist, in the car, on the computer. 7:11's were popping up everywhere. Our son was reading the Bible through for the first time, and the first day he read the New Testament his eye immediately jumped to 7:11. He could hardly believe his eyes! "If you then, being evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will your Father who is in heaven give good things to those who ask Him!" (Matthew 7:11)

After that the Lord started using 11:11 and 7:11 to confirm things He was sharing. One in particular was that He was promising the body of Christ an entire season of 11:11's! YES LORD! Then one night I had a dream that many people's journals were sprinkled with 11:11 on lots of pages. When I woke up from the

dream I heard the Lord say, "11:11." Immediately following, I glanced at my clock — it said 11:11.

Then an amazing thing happened. One night in the car Sonshine started counting 10, 9, 8, etc. I looked at the digital clock and it said 7:10. I realized what he was doing, so I started at 19, 18, 17. etc. After doing my countdown very methodically and in perfect rhythm, when I got to 4, I slowed and said, "fooouuurrr, thhhhrrreee..." and then it turned to 7:11. If I had not stalled out the 4 and 3 it would have been absolutely perfect on the dot! From that day on, I understood that we were in a season of "countdown" towards 11:11-7:11. And of course, the Lord confirmed that understanding with more you-know-whats.

Right before I added this 11:11 story to this section, I was going through my journal to find more stories or examples I could add to the book. When I searched, I was happy to find 26 more tid-bits. As I sat in my car at a stop light, I thanked the Lord for giving me so many and then I was reminded that part of my promise was that I was going to be a food gatherer for the body of Christ. I realized that was what I was doing, collecting stories for hungry people. I was feeling kind of silly, and somewhat jokingly I said, "OK Lord, I'm supposed to gather food, so let's gather some!" As soon as I said "some," I glanced up through the windshield. There looming directly above

me was a 7-11 grocery market sign. (He had the last Word on that one!)

Between digital clocks, car odometers, wrist watches, video camera timers, VCR's, computers, microwaves, score boards, exercise bike timers, signs and broken calculators — for all the trouble the Lord has gone through, all I can say is THIS SEASON IS REALLY GOING TO BE GOOD!

"If you then, being evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will your Father who is in heaven give good things to those who ask Him!" (Matthew 7:11)

10) STORIES OF GOD SPEAKING THROUGH CHILDREN

Taken from the book, 101+ Ways God Speaks (And How to Hear Him)

By Sandy Warner

HE SPEAKS THROUGH CHILDREN'S GIFTS

"Whoever receives one little child like this in My name receives Me. (Matthew 18:5 NKJV)

One season the Lord told me I would grow "holy bold." I considered my personality as a little church mouse who preferred to remain unseen and unheard. Cute mice and mouse stories popped into my life from everywhere.

My young son drew me a picture of a green Christmas tree with a HUGE mouse trying to hide in it. Sonshine's gift was a precious way for God to make His point: even if I stayed a mouse, I would grow so big I just couldn't hide! So many times my son would draw or color picture stories and give them to me in perfect timing with the Lord's Word.

HE SPEAKS THROUGH CHILDREN'S WORDS

"You have taught the little children to praise you perfectly. May their example shame and silence your enemies." (Psalms 8:2 TLB)

"Beware that you do not despise or feel scornful toward or think little of one of these little ones, for I tell you that in heaven their angels always are in the presence of and look upon the face of My Father Who is in heaven: Allow the little ones to come to Me, and do not forbid, or restrain, or hinder them, for of such {as these} the kingdom of heaven is composed." (Matthew 18:10 & Matthew 19:14 AMP)

Children are gifts straight from heaven and His heart. I have been astonished by the direct Words of my Father that come through what they say and do. As I walked through a prolonged season of wavering, seemingly on a spiritual swing set vacillating between two opinions, I would swing one way and think maybe the Lord meant such n' such, or I would swing the opposite. The Lord gave me a picture-vision of myself near the waves of the ocean. Every time a large wave (overwhelming circumstance) would come close, I would scurry to the top of a very small and skinny tree. The bottom trunk was about four inches in diameter. When the wave would hit, the tree bent way over to one side and then the other, bouncing back and forth!

It was a perfect allegory of what I was doing during that season. Isaiah 35:3 says, "...confirm the feeble knees." My knees were anything but confirmed, they felt more like rubber legs, just like that tree trunk! I felt so sifted and tired of wavering. One day as I was thinking about wavering back and forth with rubber

legs and feeling very condemned, my very young son interrupted my thoughts. He said out of nowhere, "Mama, I am worried my knees might break." Regaining my composure, I explained that when we bend and exercise our knees, it is good for them for it makes them strong! That was one of many times I remember his little voice penetrating my thoughts and bringing me encouragement from the Lord. I am now trained to know and believe that good gifts come in small packages!

God speaks very clearly through children's mouths, we only have to listen.

11) PARABLE - HIS WORD THROUGH A SON'S CREATIVITY

From Sandy Warner 12/21/98

The Lord has spoken to me through my son since he was very young. He has spoken many "Words of the Lord" through fun parables, creative gifts, words, actions, etc. The following is one of them.

Prior to gong to bed, I had just been pondering an e-mail post quoting Bob Jones as saying that from now until Feb 14th, 1999 - God was going to "Light up our darkness" Psalm, 27 (Amplified) He is going to take us from fear to "dwelling in His presence." Grandma was visiting us so I slept in my son's room. His room is decorated with hundreds of glow in the dark stars and planets. Every available space on the walls and ceiling are covered with these stars. In the day time you don't really notice them because they are white and blend with the paint.

I was very tired and had just finished reading the Word and was turning off his bed light, literally closing my eyes as I turned the switch. After a couple of seconds of laying there, startled my eyes popped open in shock! It was like a fantasy world come to life! Stars and planets everywhere glowing beautifully in 3-D effects. I was filled with a child's sense of awe as I looked around. Tickled at my son's creativity, I wondered how anyone could go to sleep in such a place! I was so tired but didn't want to close my eyes lest they disappear. I suddenly realized this was a confirmation to the Word I had been pondering, "God is going to light up our darkness."

What a joy that the Lord speaks to us through so many wonderful ways...especially our children.... OK son, it's your turn to start seeing visions! "And it shall come to pass afterward, that I will pour out my spirit upon all flesh; and your sons and your daughters shall

prophesy, your old men shall dream dreams, your young men shall see visions." (Joel 2:28)

12) TESTIMONIES OF SENDING THE YOUTH TO THE MALL TO MINISTER

Update from Chad Taylor!

Posted on 2/2/99

Glory my friends!! What a day it is! We just took a team from a local church in Seattle (International Church) to the mall on Saturday with the express purpose of laying hands on the sick and saving souls! A fire broke out amongst the youth of the church! I'm talking about 8 and 10 year olds! They were leading the adults through the mall to pray for anyone who even had the hint of sickness!! Many received Christ in this modern day market place!! It was awesome to see 6 or 7 youths gathered around a woman in a wheel chair in the middle of the mall in Bellevue praying for her healing with authority and power! People in passing were weeping! We have kept our most formidable weapon in the confines of the Sunday school walls, the children!! It was awesome to say the least!!

That night the youth rose up to testify! One young lady, Katie, began to prophesy a releasing of the youth into their callings and destinies! This is a precedent that He is setting for 99 and beyond! A releasing of the youth and the church into their callings and destinies. To know who we are in Him and take it to the streets and hi-ways and change the course of nations... And that my friends is exactly what we are doing.

We prayed for a man from Vietnam to receive Christ. He kept saying over and over, "I can feel it! I can feel it! I can feel it!!" Another man in training to go to Thailand met us and we prayed for him and took up an offering amongst us right on the spot in the middle of the mall! One of first persons that I spoke to listened quietly as we spoke and even prayed for him, he did not even utter a word. We finally asked him as he was about to leave what we could pray for him about in private, he rose up and as he was walking away, in tears he exclaimed, "FREEDOM ... " This is the heart cry of the people of the world. A deep down cry to be free. And we as the Church of Jesus Christ have the keys to that freedom, sometimes locked away in our own heats. We must remember now the words of Christ in this hour, "Heal the sick, cleanse the lepers, raise the dead, cast out demons, Freely you have received now freely give ... " We are on the edge of the greatest harvest field in the history of planet earth. Matthew 13:38 says, "the field is the world..." verse 39 says, "...the harvest is the end of the age..." That's us!! We are it! He is saying cast our nets on the other side now and take in the greatest catch! That is part of the "greater works" He spoke of, reaching a population of people that He could not in His 3 short years... The sound of prophetic evangelism is ringing in the ears of the church, to do more than present a gospel message, but to define destiny! To say "This is WHO you ARE in Christ!"

"Before I formed you in the womb I knew you; before you were born I sanctified you; I ordained you a prophet to the nations." (Jeremiah 1:5")

That is prophetic evangelism! Defining the destiny of an individual, a city, a nation. Saying, "This is who you are in Christ! This is His plan for you!" Echoing the words of Christ Himself, "You have not chosen Me, BUT I CHOSE YOU AND ORDAINED YOU THAT YOU SHOULD GO AND BEAR FRUIT, and that your fruit should remain...(John 15:16) A people that are prophetic in knowing and evangelistic in doing! That is prophetic evangelism. Knowing the Father's heart and then responding accordingly. His heart in this most critical hour is "GO THEREFORE AND MAKE DISCIPLES OF ALL THE NATIONS!" That is His heart, that is our commission...

Chad Taylor

A friend loves at all times...

destiny@televar.com

website: http://www.televar.com/~destiny

13) DOWNPOUR OF HIS HOLY SPIRIT UPON THE YOUTH

Posted 2/4/99

Hi fellow-laborers,

Dean and Marty have so eloquently described our major God encounter, I didn't feel compelled to shout my own joy from the rooftops (YET...). But tonight God did a work that leaves me in total amazement. Marty shared about the major downpour of His Spirit on our young people at the tent, well in the aftermath a group of Jr Hi'ers that were ruined last week came and asked Gene and me if we could do a quickie class for altar ministry so that they could have a renewal meeting at Jr Hi tonight. We agreed, but I have to confess that I had NO IDEA what God had in mind for these youth.

My first clue came when I pulled into the church parking lot yesterday for our 6 PM quickie altar class, and 8 kids RAN to meet me. As we talked about standard stuff like rules for catching, how to pray for the Father's blessing, etc I was surprised at the passion and urgency theses kids were feeling for their

un-ruined peers. The Jr Hi ministry is sorta unique because there are actually a lot of unsaved kids from the neighborhood that show up for the gym time. I'm told they get restless and hostile when they have to sit through worship and preaching, and the general opinion about Jr Hi is that it's a tough ministry with not much fruit. My personal confession is that when I realized that I had actually agreed to attend a Jr Hi meeting, I was awed by God's ability to bypass our sensibilities:)

Today as I interceded for the meeting, I felt anticipation and excitement rising in me. I remembered the pureness of these kid's desire for the Holy Spirit, their intensity about making sure the unsaved kids were touched and changed, and I knew that God's heart was in this thing. I remembered the prophecies over the years about revival fires burning out from our youth to consume our city...whew!

When we arrived tonight for pre-service prayer I walked into a group of about 20 kids who were flat out contending for a major outpouring NOW. My heart started pounding in my chest, and I was hyperventilating as I realized that God had every intention of meeting them, that in fact this whole thing was HIS IDEA!!

Look out church....this was a sovereign thing. No man could have even imagined this outpouring, no revival

maniac would have been bold enough to pray for THIS manifestation. The youth leaders basically announced that they had been touched by God, and they were not going back to the old way of things. They declared that our God is GOOD, and His blessings are AWESOME, and He loves His kids, and He was waiting to love on them. I had wisely counseled the kids to be patient and give people time to respond, so they weren't at all surprised when they were utterly stampeded by kids of every shape, attitude, color, and size all hungry for life to be different, and believing that God would do it. I saw two boys who were visiting the gym for the first time go down front, accept Jesus, be filled with the Spirit, and lay slain on the floor for 20 minutes. I watched cynical kids leave and then turn and run back. I saw kids walk up to prayer team kids and say "Can I accept Jesus into my heart?" We aren't sure yet how many salvations happened tonight, the kids will count them up.

One of the neatest things to watch was the two young women, our pastor's daughters, who have labored so faithfully for so long with so little fruit, totally overwhelmed at the grace and mercy of God. They were so blessed, crying non-stop as God called in the first fruits of what will surely be a great harvest of youth, hugging and crying with these kids as the Spirit of God moved to heal them and make them whole.

Our God is an AWESOME God! Tonight I feel that every contribution I have ever made to God's Kingdom was returned to me ten-fold. I was in complete awe and amazement at His incredible mercy, and I face the harvest with a whole new feeling, no longer wondering at how it would ever happen, but trying to catch my breath as I consider the immensity of the experience. When God is ready to harvest folks, well, they'll be coming running. No heart is too hard to resist the mercy of God when it's focused on him.

Praise God! Oh yeah, MORE LORD!!!! Rejoicing anew!

Kathie Tollifson

Hi All,

I have to testify as well about Saturday night, our last tent meeting. My daughters finally got to come after babysitting and/or having the flu all week. My junior higher wanted me to take her home as soon as we got there because she was "tired" and didn't like it. When all of us on the ministry team were called up she grabbed me and said please don't go, but realized Gene Tollifson was asking me to come and decided I needed to go. I was enjoying ministry time so much praying for folks when I looked up a while later to check on my girls and one was being prayed

for and my junior higher!!!! wow! - SHE was praying for her friends and there were a whole group of junior highers on the carpet, laughing, crying, getting slain in the Spirit and they were praying over their leaders and WOW! They did this for hours! She couldn't stop smiling and telling me all that happened on the way home. She said Mom I'm SO GLAD I got to come! It it so COOL to pray for people! I didn't know it was so FUN! The junior highers got so blessed! Then yesterday she asks if she can come to Alter Ministry Training on Sunday with me! She said, Mom kids my age don't like going up front for prayer sometimes, but if we had kids our own age up there, they would! I'm so excited and thankful! When your children get excited and hungry about serving the Father by serving others it's WON-DER-FUL!

I have to "ditto" everything Dean Cooper said. There was one young man from our singles's group that got so transformed at the tent that he came Saturday night with his face painted in markers telling how much he loved God and his "tigger" tie wrapped around his neck. I think there are too many ruined people now to be content for anything less than going all out for the Father. Worship was so fun Sunday morning. What blessed me so was seeing more men up front "going for it" in worship, dancing and praising the Father.

Hungry and anticipating more from our Daddy,

Marty Dalton

Hi All,

I HAD to add some more from Kathie's post last nite about the leftover, all out, going for MORE of the Father that was deposited in our Junior Hi folks from the New Freedom Circuit Riders Tent Meetings!

Last nite at Jr. Hi was incredible! Kathie and Gene Tollifson and I went to the Jr. Hi meeting. The kids who had gotten so touched last week at the Tent meeting came with great expectation to "ruin" their peers and to dunk them in the Holy Spirit and the Father's love. After giving several testimony's and a message from Michael Joyce, a young man from our worship ministry, the kids called everyone up who wanted the Father to touch them and Michael invited those who didn't know the Lord to see him. There were several kid's who had just come for the first time (they were holding onto their basketballs wanting to get back to the gym) last nite who ASKED to get saved and filled with the Holy Spirit - they were so hungry!

Soon the floor was littered with young men followed by young ladies. The few adults who were there just interceded as our jr. hi'ers took over in such fervent prayer for their peers. I'd say there were at least 5 first time conversions with many who were gloriously filled so powerfully with the Holy Spirit all I could do was weep and smile and laugh as I watched our Father pour out to these pure, hungry hearts. The kids "went for it", and Junior High ministry will never be the same again!

You should have seen the parents faces who came to pick up their kids and they couldn't understand where they were, cause their kids were on the floor! I was so blessed seeing hungry hearts filled and many of the kids after being ministered to got more love poured into them just clinging to our Pastor's daughters and weeping! These young ladies (Pastor John's daughters) HAVE labored, as Kathie said, for so long. It was so great to see MUCH fruit last nite, the young people just couldn't get enough, and I'm SURE the Father has MORE.

God be with you all!

Marty Dalton

14) YOUTH PASSION

SANDY WARNER RHEMA 7/9/00

DREAM: I walked into a living room where there were all these young people on the floor. There was a teacher in the front and as he said something very simple, but the kids were so passionate and hungry for the Lord that this simple word caused them to go into spontaneous worship and praise. I was totally blasted by the Lord's Presence and I had done nothing but observe. It was their own passion that backwashed over me and I was receiving the blessing of their own passion and seeking Him. I was so blessed by this. I literally felt the waves of the Holy Spirit in the dream and as I woke up.

Acts 2:17 NKJV

And it shall come to pass in the last days, says God, That I will pour out of My Spirit on all flesh; Your sons and your daughters shall prophesy, Your young men shall see visions...

WORD TO PONDER THE PASSION OF THE YOUTH 7/9/00

There shall come a day when you will walk into a room full of youth who are hungry for Me. They will be lounging all over, taking notes and listening intently. Suddenly something said shall be quickened to them and they will break out in spontaneous praise. The backwash of their enthusiasm for Me will cover you with wonderful blessings as you merely observe and receive. I say this, because no matter how limited their understanding of Me is, and no matter what simple thing they are studying, the passion for Me will reap tremendous blessings upon you. You shall experience My Presence in places where you least expect

"But Jesus said, "Let the children come to me. Don't stop them! For the Kingdom of Heaven belongs to such as these." And he put his hands on their heads and blessed them before he left." (Matt 19:14-15 NLT)

15) CHILDREN JOINING US IN PRAYING FOR ONE ANOTHER

SANDY WARNER RHEMA 12/10/99:

HEARD: Let's bring the children into it.

DREAM: I was telling the kids not to let go of God's Word and then I realized the same Word was for me too.

DREAM: I was praying for someone then he said I can use all the prayers I can possibly get.

HEARD: Circle of faith.

Matt 19:14-15 NKJV

But Jesus said, "Let the little children come to Me, and do not forbid them; for of such is the kingdom of heaven."

16) QUICKENED VISITATION

SANDY WARNER RHEMA 3/5/98:

I woke suddenly in the night. My son had kicked the common wall between our bedrooms with his foot. I immediately heard my door open and I thought, "Oh that must be my son, and he needs me for some reason."

I opened my eyes to see what he wanted and no one was there. I thought, "That must have been a spiritual opening of the ears" and closed my eyes to go back to sleep. Immediately the Holy Spirit quickened the top of my head and shoulders with His tangible anointing. I said, "Oh that feels soooo good!"

I knew I had had a quickening, but I really wanted to know why the Lord came the way He did.

ANOINTED HANDS: I turned to: "And he shall turn the heart of the fathers to the children, and the heart of the children to their fathers, lest I come and smite the earth with a curse." (Malachi 4:6)

I suddenly realized that it was the Lord Who came through my door, in the disguise of a child. Because I received the interruption to my sleep with a heart to help my beloved son, I had received the Lord.

WORD TO PONDER 3/5/98 IN THE FORM OF A

CHILD

I come to you in many ways and you are learning to discern My voice. Because you have a heart to receive My children, I am going to quicken you and transform you in the midst of a generation of turning the hearts of children and parents towards one another. My quickening power shall come upon you and you shall receive My power, My operation into higher revelation and heavenly visitations.

"Teach me to do thy will; for thou art my God: thy spirit is good; lead me into the land of uprightness. 11 Quicken me, O LORD, for thy name's sake: for thy righteousness' sake bring my soul out of trouble." (Ps 143:10-11 KJV)

17) THE LORD REJOICES OVER THE YOUTH

SANDY WARNER RHEMA 11/30/98:

HEARD: Just around the corner, an event. Holding the prophetic children. Isn't that amazing? So many blooming at once. My desire to see the children. Spiritual destiny. Those that hear My call.

We're not paying our bills. Bought and won. Freedom. Hold on, someone paid for you. Yes sir, let there be life. Freely flowing one to another. Rejoice in joy.

Supernatural calling. Called forth from the womb. Separate unto Me.

A whole nation. Israel. The trumpet sounds. We heard the call. We figured someone had to do it. Bring us to the front. Ready for battle. Armed. Weapon.

Stand. A holy nation led by God. Lord free the young ones. Adorable.

HEARD: Help steward them.

Luke 10:21-22 NKJV

In that hour Jesus rejoiced in the Spirit and said, "I thank You, Father, Lord of heaven and earth, that You have hidden these things from the wise and prudent and revealed them to babes. Even so, Father, for so it seemed good in Your sight.

18) THE KINGDOM OF GOD IS ALL ABOUT HAVING CHILDREN

SANDY WARNER RHEMA 10/10/97:

DREAM: Anna and I were in a meeting where a former pastor who had died was preaching. He was

walking in a big circle around the whole audience. He said, "The kingdom of God is all about having children." As I heard this, I leaned my head upon Anna's shoulder and wrote it down in my journal because it was quickened to me.

[Later in the middle of the night I was reflecting upon Abraham and his seed, David and his sons, the long lists of genealogies, and that Adam was told to be fruitful and multiply.

WORD TO PONDER KINGDOM OF GOD 10/10/97 The kingdom of God is all about having children. Great are those who have died to self on behalf of those they love, and in so doing have released a harvest of many children. It is My heart to have many children, to nurture, protect, feed and raise them up into My image. I have placed My heart within My own, to bear children and then to serve them, for I delight in procreation, both physical and spiritual.

"My little children, of whom I travail in birth again until Christ be formed in you," (Gal 4:19 KJV)

19) RELEASE THE SONS AND RELEASE YOURSELF

SANDY WARNER RHEMA RHEMA 4/17/07 Heidi Baker's meeting was so incredible last night.

She shared that when the Lord called her 11 years ago, one of the things she saw in her 7 days and 7 nights glued to the floor under His Spirit, was Him pouring out a cup from His side and asking her to drink it. It was the cup of suffering and the cup of joy. After over 1 millions souls to Jesus, over 7,000 church plants, adopting, feeding and living with over 1,000 orphans, she said she never understood that part of the vision until the last 2 months.

I sat spell bound as she described how she was ready to go home to Jesus now and wanted to die. The suffering of the famine, floods, disease and death were so horrendous in her country, it was overwhelming to her. Several times the Lord told her to finish her assignment and to release her sons. Then in the midst of her sharing, I suddenly understood her pain. I saw her mother's heart. She has been dealing with the sufferings of Mozambique all along. And they have been devastating and God has given her the miracles of the food, salvations and healings, but she was with her children when she did so.

The Lord was calling her to accept traveling engagements around the world, and all she wanted to do was be in Mozambique with her children. She was on this fancy boat going somewhere, and she was crying out in desperation, "Get me off this boat, I want to go home!!" The Lord told her on the boat, "Finish your assignment and release your sons." So she went on in her journey and on 3/22 in the middle of a meeting where people had fallen on the floor all around her, someone came up to her and handed her a cell phone. It was one of her sons and he was

screaming and crying, "Mom there are missiles going off everywhere!!!!" She could hear the missiles hitting on the phone. She ran out into the parking lot and said Mother Bear kicked in. She told the devil to leave her kids alone and then she prayed Psalm 91 over them.

Again she was in deep desperation and wanted to go back home to her kids. The Lord again said, "Finish your assignment and release your sons." The next day the missiles stopped blowing up in the yard and she found out that all of her 1000+ children had run to the prayer room connected to her home and they worshipped and sang at the top of their lungs through the whole thing. On their way, they saw heads blown off and flying through the air, arms missing, babies thrown out of their mother's arms. And Heidi's dear children all gathered and not one hair on their head was missing. This was her cup of joy.

Ps 91:16 NKJV

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High Shall abide under the shadow of the Almighty. 2 I will say of the LORD, "He is my refuge and my fortress; Mγ Him will trust." God. in 3 Surely He shall deliver you from the snare of the fowler And from the perilous pestilence. 4 He shall cover you with His feathers, And under His wings you shall take refuge; His truth shall be your shield and buckler. 5 You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, Nor of the arrow that flies by day, 6 Nor of the pestilence that walks in darkness, Nor of the destruction that lays waste at noonday.

7 A thousand may fall at your side, And ten thousand at your right hand; But it shall not come near you. 8 Only with your eyes shall you look, And see the reward of the wicked.

9 Because you have made the LORD, who is my refuge, Even the Most High, your dwelling place, 10 No evil shall befall you, Nor shall any plague come near your dwelling; 11 For He shall give His angels charge over you, To keep you in all your ways. 12 In their hands they shall bear you up, Lest you dash your foot against a stone. 13 You shall tread upon the lion and the cobra, The young lion and the serpent shall trample vou underfoot. 14 "Because he has set his love upon Me, therefore I will deliver him; I will set him on high, because he has known My name. 15 He shall call upon Me, and I will answer him; I will be with him in trouble; I will deliver him and honor him. 16 With long life I will satisfy him. And show him My salvation."

They had 2 missiles shoot through 2 of their buildings and one missile explode shrapnel in a third. But no one was touched in her family, helpers and partners. They literally lived through Psalm 91. How she wanted to go home and hold her children who had been terrorized!! But she released her sons.

Her sons were given keys to their trucks and went to the villages and distributed food, preached the gospel, healed the sick and carried on the work. She said, "These are my sons! These were the garbage children who only knew stealing and violence. These are the thieves and the prostitutes." You never heard such a precious mom's heart when she said, These are my sons! This was her cup of joy.

I could clearly hear the prophetic parable and divine time line that her sons were launched in the midst of the storm and she was to release them into their destinies so she could step into hers. I feel the parable is connected with the line of demarcation that I have carried all this time. I dont know if Heidi was aware that she was a living parable at the tip of the arrow, proclaiming a corporate Word over His people as she was merely sharing her testimony. The Lord has been dealing with me for 7 months that it was time to lay down old intercessions and let go and walk into new places. This has been very heart rendering for me to do, because I have a passionate mother's heart over what I have carried for so long.

Heidi shared a few other poignant things. One was that she just hugged and loved people and that is how they were delivered from their demons and received their miracles of healing. She released people and children to pray for one another. And she shared how when she watches the fishers draw in their nets, they pull and sing, pull and sing. It is all one unified effort as they work together to gather a huge net. She compared it to the lone man fisher to brings in his one fish. She said we have to work together to gather the harvest that is there.

She said another thing, she said do not stay in that despair of suffering. She said if you do, you will die. She said in His Presence is the fullness of joy and

you have got to live there. She quoted the same verse I have been wrestling over for several months, feeling like I had accomplished all He had asked me to do in intercessory assignments, harvesting rhema and getting the nursery ready to feed the harvest. I too have yearned to go home until He reminded me there was one vision not yet fulfilled: "Gentlemen, we shall rebuild."

Phil 1:21-26 NKJV

For to me, to live is Christ, and to die is gain. 22 But if I live on in the flesh, this will mean fruit from my labor; yet what I shall choose I cannot tell. 23 For I am hard-pressed between the two, having a desire to depart and be with Christ, which is far better. 24 Nevertheless to remain in the flesh is more needful for you. 25 And being confident of this, I know that I shall remain and continue with you all for your progress and joy of faith, 26 that your rejoicing for me may be more abundant in Jesus Christ by my coming to you again.

Acts 15:16-17 NKJV

After! this I will return and will rebuild the tabernacle of David, which has fallen down; I will rebuild its ruins, and I will set it up; So that the rest of mankind may seek the LORD, even all the Gentiles who are called by My name, says the LORD who does all these things.'

20) RAINING MARBLES, WILL YOU PLAY?

SANDY WARNER RHEMA 2/19/08

HEARD: Come on kids. Let's go have fun. I am telling you something, dont be afraid. Delivering you from shyness.

HEARD: I'm afraid to be myself. Let's see, now where shall we begin? Just be natural. Everywhere you look. It's a natural flow. Just being yourself in letting Me shine.

Matt 5:14-16 NKJV

"You are the light of the world. A city that is set on a hill cannot be hidden. Nor do they light a lamp and put it under a basket, but on a lampstand, and it gives light to all who are in the house. Let your light so shine before men, that they may see your good works and glorify your Father in heaven.

PIX: I was peering under a porch.

HEARD: Under the porch. Children play. Inhibited. Shyness. I will deliver you and set you free. Basically come out in the light. Show us your stuff. They are beautiful.

PIX: I saw pretty marbles.

HEARD: Each one is coded. For purpose and destiny. PIX: I saw a marble being held up to the sun and an eye was in the middle of it.

HEARD: My eye is upon you, within you, around you. It's raining marbles. Smile. Jewels from heaven. For My children. Want more? Come and get them. Joy for

all. Raining marbles. Dont be afraid to show us your marbles.

PIX: I saw a path that was made with marbles that had been set into place.

HEARD: Heats on. Glued together. Bonded into place. One by one. Marbles and placement. Trust Me. To bring into alignment. Fashioned after My image. My eye, nothing overlooked. I see all. Know all. Hear all. Understand all. Feel all. Nothing escapes My watchfulness. If it's there, I know it.

Rom 8:28-30 NKJV

And we know that all things work together for good to those who love God, to those who are the called according to His purpose. For whom He foreknew, He also predestined to be conformed to the image of His Son, that He might be the firstborn among many brethren. Moreover whom He predestined, these He also called; whom He called, these He also justified; and whom He justified, these He also glorified.

HEARD: This is your assignment, to stay with your kids. I will set them.

WORD TO PONDER: RAINING MARBLES, WILL YOU PLAY? 2/19/08

Beloved children, I delight in giving you little treasures from heaven. I AM raining down precious nuggets from heaven, each one encoded with purpose and destiny. These are My little joys that touch your life in unique ways where you see and recognize My loving hand.

I AM personally working in your life, My eye is upon you. Nothing escapes My watchfulness. Be free with joy as you receive this truth set with a pathway of confirmations, each lovingly sprinkled and set into place, to make your road a sure, set place in Me.

You will find even greater joy as you share your precious nuggets of faith with others. Do not be afraid to share, release your shyness to Me and I will deliver you with joy. You will find that in your sharing, it will bring much joy to others and to yourself.

Isa 54:11-13 NKJV

Behold, I will lay your stones with colorful gems, and lay your foundations with sapphires. I will make your pinnacles of rubies, Your gates of crystal, And all your walls of precious stones. All your children shall be taught by the LORD, and great shall be the peace of your children.

THE QUICKENED WORD WEBSITE MINISTRY

www.thequickenedword.com



~ THE QUICKENED WORD ~ Quickened Words for Hungry & Searching Hearts

The Quickened Word shares timely prophetic insights through a variety of means: Visions · Dreams · Still Small Voice · Words to Ponder · Articles · Scriptural Studies · Quickened Quotes · Quickened Stories · Parables · Ears2Hear

In 1984 Sandy Warner had a personal visitation from Jesus Christ in which He handed her a solid gold pen. He planted within her an anointing and passion to encourage a hurting world and to teach others how to hear the Lord.

Sandy releases to her readers only what the Holy Spirit has quickened to her as prophetic, personal, timely, applicable and helpful.

John 6:63

It is the spirit that quickeneth; the flesh profiteth nothing: the words that I speak unto you, they are spirit, and they are life.

E-MAIL LIST: Sent to Equip & Encourage SUBSCRIBE BY SENDING AN EMAIL TO:

HTTP://WWW.THEQUICKENEDWORD.COM/SUBSCRIBE.HTM

books SOFT COVER * HARD COVER * E-BOOKS

http://stores.lulu.com/SandyWarner and www.thequickenedword.com



BOOKS BY SANDY

1] 101+ Ways God Speaks (And How To Hear Him) 101

- Spanish Version:101+ Ways God Speaks (And How To Hear Him)
- 2] Ministering Deliverance
- 3] The Baptism of the Holy Spirit Hungarian Version: The Baptism of the Holy Spirit
- 4] The Journey of Our Faith More Precious Than Gold
- 5] Discernment: Separating the Holy From the Profane
- 6] Your Authority in Christ Jesus
- 7] Intercessors Arise & Finding Your Authority
- 8] Overcomers Arise
- 9] Lessons in Warfare
- 10] Beautiful Butterfly: God's Mystery
- 11] All Aboard the Glory Train
- 12] In Synch: God's Call to Unity
- 13] Rain & Glory
- 14] Parables & Signs: God's Hidden Love Stories
- 15] Words to Ponder
- 16] A Way Out of the Maze
- 17] God Speaks Through Humor and Bloopers
- 18] Angels and Demons
- 19] Poetry to Ponder
- 20] Gold Fever
- 21] QW Articles Volume 1 Rhema
- 22] The School of Ears2Hear Volume 2 Rhema
- 23] Walk With Me Volume 3 Rhema
- 24] Treasures in the Snow Volume 4 Rhema
- 25] Eyes2See Volume 5 Rhema
- 26] Word Pictures
- 27] Glossary of Spiritual Interpretation
- 28] God Speaks Through Dreams
- 29] The Quickened Word School on How God Speak
- 30] Seeds For Destiny Volume 6 Rhema

OTHER AUTHORS

Annie's Visions - Books 1 - 4 combined - Annie Schisler Moments of Intimacy – Grandma Anna's Selahs Climbing Higher – Grandma Anna's Selahs Volume 2 One Minute Mysteries Volumes 1, 2 & 3 – John Warner